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Seven West Media Limited
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 29 JUNE 2013

2013 2012

Notes $’000 $’000

Revenue 3                        1,866,457     1,937,107        

Other income 3                        260                  227                   

Revenue and other income 1,866,717     1,937,334        

Expenses 4                        (1,479,600)    (1,483,995)      

Share of net profit of equity accounted investees 12                      15,251            20,084             

Impairment of intangible assets 5                        (227,274)        -                         

Impairment of equity accounted investees 5                        (61,453)          -                         

Profit before net finance costs and tax 113,641         473,423           

Net finance costs 6                        (102,452)        (148,240)          

Profit before tax 11,189            325,183           

Tax expense 7                        (80,947)          (98,294)            

(Loss) profit for the year (69,758)          226,889           

Other comprehensive (expense) income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges (1,839)             (6,192)               

Tax relating to items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 551                  1,858                

Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of tax (1,288)             (4,334)               

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year attributable to owners of the Company (71,046)          222,555           

Earnings per share for (loss) profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company

Basic earnings per share 29                      -7.1 cents 33.3 cents

Diluted earnings per share 29                      -6.1 cents 26.7 cents

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Seven West Media Limited
AS AT 29 JUNE 2013

2013 2012

Notes $’000 $’000

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8                        257,316         75,052             

Trade and other receivables 9                        278,105         329,865           

Program rights and inventories 10                      117,508         116,442           

Other assets 11                      5,105              7,862                

Total current assets 658,034         529,221           

Non-current assets

Program rights and inventories 10                      -                         4,035                

Equity accounted investees 12                      304,394         351,766           

Other investments 13                      777                  777                   

Property, plant and equipment 14                      241,357         262,410           

Intangible assets 15                      3,632,015     3,865,545        

Deferred tax assets 7                        26,270            22,040             

Other assets 11                      3,191              2,795                

Total non-current assets 4,208,004     4,509,368        

Total assets 4,866,038     5,038,589        

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 16                      321,875         339,281           

Provisions 17                      76,838            64,352             

Deferred income 18                      20,044            19,096             

Current tax liabilities 25,308            6,230                

Total current liabilities 444,065         428,959           

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 16                      35,937            39,557             

Provisions 17                      16,513            16,350             

Deferred income 18                      7,539              4,531                

Borrowings 19                      1,498,106     1,929,799        

Total non-current liabilities 1,558,095     1,990,237        

Total liabilities 2,002,160     2,419,196        

Net assets 2,863,878     2,619,393        

EQUITY
Share capital 20                      3,090,405     2,656,017        

Reserves 21                      (5,263)             (4,893)               

Accumulated deficit (221,264)        (31,731)            

Total equity 2,863,878     2,619,393        

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Seven West Media Limited
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 29 JUNE 2013

Share      
capital

Cash flow 
hedge 

reserve

Equity 
compensation 

reserve
Reserve for 
own shares

Retained 
earnings/ 

(accumulated 
deficit) 

Total         
equity

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Balance at 25 June 2011 2,489,061     (58)                 217                      -                   22,259               2,511,479     

Profit for the year -                         -                      -                            -                   226,889              226,889           

Cash flow hedge losses taken to equity -                         (6,192)            -                            -                   -                            (6,192)               

Tax on other comprehensive expense -                         1,858             -                            -                   -                            1,858                

-                         (4,334)            -                            -                   -                            (4,334)               

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year -                         (4,334)            -                            -                   226,889              222,555           

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

Shares issued pursuant to executive and employee

 share plans 20 394                   -                      -                            -                   -                            394                   

Dividend reinvestment plan share issues 20 166,203           -                      -                            -                   -                            166,203           

Deferred tax recognised directly in equity 20 359                   -                      -                            -                   -                            359                   

Payments made for own shares -                         -                      -                            (1,300)        -                            (1,300)               

Dividends paid 22 -                         -                      -                            -                   (280,879)             (280,879)          

Share based payment expense -                         -                      582 -                   -                            582                   

Total transactions with owners 166,956           -                      582                       (1,300)        (280,879)             (114,641)          

Balance at 30 June 2012 2,656,017     (4,392)          799                      (1,300)       (31,731)              2,619,393     

Loss for the year -                         -                      -                            -                   (69,758)               (69,758)            

Cash flow hedge losses taken to equity -                         (1,839)            -                            -                   -                            (1,839)               

Tax on other comprehensive expense -                         551                 -                            -                   -                            551                   

Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of tax -                         (1,288)            -                            -                   -                            (1,288)

Total comprehensive expense for the year -                         (1,288)            -                            -                   (69,758)               (71,046)            

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners

Shares issued pursuant to 1-for-2 entitlement offer 20 439,633           -                      -                            -                   -                            439,633           

Shares issued pursuant to executive and employee

 share plans 20 10                      -                      -                            -                   -                            10                      

Transaction costs arising on share issues 20 (7,508)               -                      -                            -                   -                            (7,508)               

Deferred tax recognised directly in equity 20 2,253                -                      -                            -                   -                            2,253                

Payments made for own shares -                         -                      -                            (217)            -                            (217)                  

Dividends paid 22 -                         -                      -                            -                   (119,775)             (119,775)          

Share based payment expense -                         -                      1,135                   -                   -                            1,135                

Total transactions with owners 434,388           -                      1,135                   (217)            (119,775)             315,531           

Balance at 29 June 2013 3,090,405     (5,680)          1,934                  (1,517)       (221,264)           2,863,878     

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of tax
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
Seven West Media Limited
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 29 JUNE 2013

2013 2012

Notes $’000 $’000

Cash flows related to operating activities

Receipts from customers 2,115,106     2,083,033        

Payments to suppliers and employees (1,611,068)    (1,588,420)      

Dividends received from equity accounted investees 12                      4,270              17,333             

Interest and other items of similar nature received 9,496              7,436                

Interest and other costs of finance paid (111,937)        (194,965)          

Income taxes paid (63,295)          (108,452)          

Net operating cash flows 32                      342,572         215,965           

Cash flows related to investing activities

Payments for purchases of property, plant and equipment 14                      (19,980)          (25,995)            

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 524                  428                   

Payments for software 15                      (9,089)             (5,611)               

Payments for equity accounted investees 12                      (1,900)             -                         

Loans issued (488)                 (650)                  

Net investing cash flows (30,933)          (31,828)            

Cash flows related to financing activities

Proceeds from shares issued pursuant to 1-for-2 entitlement offer 439,633         -                         

Proceeds from shares issued pursuant to executive and employee share plans 10                     394                   

Payments made for own shares (217)                 (1,300)               

Payments for transaction costs arising on share issues 20 (7,508)             -                         

Proceeds from borrowings -                         1,993,000        

Repayment of borrowings (441,518)        (2,105,070)      

Dividends paid (119,775)        (114,676)          

Net financing cash flows (129,375)        (227,652)          

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 182,264         (43,515)            

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 75,052            118,567           

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8                        257,316         75,052             

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Seven West Media Limited
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 29 JUNE 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this consolidated financial report are set out below.  These policies have been 

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.  The financial statements are for the Group consisting of Seven West Media
Limited (the “Company” or “Parent Entity”) and its subsidiaries, all of which are for-profit entities. 

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 August 2013.

(a) Basis of preparation
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs), other authoritative

pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), including Australian Interpretations and the Corporations Act 2001.

Compliance with IFRS
The consolidated financial statements of the Seven West Media Limited Group also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
None of the new standards and amendments to standards that are mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 July 2012 
affected any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements of the Group for current or comparative periods and are not likely to 

affect future periods. However, amendments made to AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements effective 1 July 2012 now requires the  
statement of comprehensive income to show the items of comprehensive income grouped into those that are not permitted to be 
reclassified to profit or loss in a future period and those that may have to be reclassified if certain conditions are met.

Early adoption of standards
The Group has not elected to apply any pronouncements before their operative date in the annual reporting period beginning 1 July 2012.

Historical cost convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of derivative instruments 

held at fair value.

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates and assumptions.  It also requires management to exercise its 

judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.  The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas  

where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed below.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future 

events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.  The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results.  The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within

the next financial year are discussed below.

Recoverable amounts of intangible assets
The Group tests annually whether goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives have suffered any impairment in accordance with the group

accounting policy stated in note 1(j).  The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value in use and fair 

value less costs to sell approaches. These calculations require the use of assumptions.  Refer to note 15 for details of these assumptions.

Tax exposures

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional

taxes and interest may be due (refer note 7). This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgments about 

future events. New information may become available that causes the Group to change its judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities.

Such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is made. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Seven West Media Limited
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 29 JUNE 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
Other assets
The Group also tests other assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

Comparatives
Comparative information is reclassified where appropriate to enhance comparability. 

(b) Principles of consolidation
(i) Subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Seven West Media Limited as at 29 June 2013 and

the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. Seven West Media Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to in this financial report

as the “Group.”

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies, generally accompanying a 

shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.  The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or

convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.  They are de-consolidated from the date that control

ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group (refer to note 1(i)).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.  Unrealised losses are also 

eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset transferred.  Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been  

changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated income statement, statement of

comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of financial position respectively.

(ii) Associates and jointly controlled entities (equity-accounted investees)
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20

per cent and 50 per cent of the voting rights.  Jointly controlled entities are those entities over whose activities the Company has joint control,

established by contractual agreement and requiring unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating decisions.  Investments in associates
and jointly controlled entities are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, after initially
being recognised at cost.  The Group’s investment in equity accounted investees includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss)

identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its equity accounted investees’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or loss, its share of associates’ post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves and its share of jointly controlled entities’ post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in other comprehensive income.  The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment.  Dividends receivable from equity accounted investees are recognised in the consolidated financial statements as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses equals or exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, 

the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its equity accounted investees are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee.  Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.  Accounting
policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(c) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision makers. The chief 

operating decision makers, responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, have been identified as
the chief executive officer, the chief financial officer and other relevant members of the executive team.

50



Notes to the Financial Statements
Seven West Media Limited
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 29 JUNE 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in 

which the entity operates ('the functional currency').  The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Group’s 

functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.  

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are deferred in equity as

qualifying cash flow hedges.

(e) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of agency commissions,

discounts, rebates, returns, trade allowances and duties and taxes paid. The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably

measured, it is probable the future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities 

as described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.

Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:

(i) Advertising
Revenue is recognised when the advertisement has been published or broadcast.

Revenue from advertising services provided in exchange for broadcast rights or other goods or services is measured at the fair value of the goods 

or services received.  When the fair value of the goods or services received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair

value of the advertising services provided.

Contra advertising and advertorial revenue are recognised at the fair value of the goods or services received or if they cannot be measured

reliably, at the fair value of the advertising services provided.

(ii) Circulation  and  commercial  printing
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the buyer and control of the right to be compensated 

has been obtained.

(iii) Program sales

Program sales revenue is recognised upon delivery of episodes to the buyer. Affiliate revenue is recognised in line with the contract terms and 

conditions held with affiliates.

(iv) Government grants
Government grants are recognised initially in the statement of financial position as deferred income when it is highly probable that the 

grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

When the grant relates to the reimbursement of an expense item, it is recognised in profit or loss over the periods necessary to match the costs

that it is intended to compensate.

When the grant relates to the cost of an asset, the amount received is credited to a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over

the lifetime of the asset on a systematic basis. 

(v) Rendering  of  services
Revenue is recognised when the service has been performed, the stage of completion can be measured reliably and the costs to complete can 

be measured reliably.

(vi) Rental Income
Rental income is recognised in profit and loss on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

(vii) Dividends
Dividend income is recorded net of any franking credits. Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Seven West Media Limited
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 29 JUNE 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(f) Finance income and costs
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis that takes into account the effective yield on the asset. It comprises income on funds

 invested and fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, the ineffective portion of cash flow hedges and fair value losses on financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and

prepare the asset for its intended use.  Other borrowing costs are expensed.

(g) Tax
The tax expense for the year is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable income based on the national tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred 

tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 

and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.  However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial 

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting

nor taxable profit or loss.  Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the

reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional

taxes and interest may be due. The Group believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment

of many factors, including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve

a series of judgments about future events. New information may become available that causes the Group to change its judgment regarding the 

adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is made. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts

will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.  Management have determined that deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 

associated with intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, such as mastheads, should be measured based on the tax consequences that would

follow from the sale of that asset.  Deferred tax assets are only booked where recovery of that asset is probable.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in 

controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the 

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current assets and liabilities and when the deferred 

tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.  Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to 

offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Tax consolidation
The Company and it's wholly owned Australian resident entities are part of a tax consolidated group. As a consequence, all members of the 

tax consolidated group are taxed as a single entity. The head entity within the tax consolidated group is Seven West Media Limited.

(h) Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases (refer note 25).

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over

the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases, where the Group is a lessor, is recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Seven West Media Limited
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 29 JUNE 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(i) Acquisition of assets and business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are

acquired.  The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred

and the equity interests issued by the Group.  The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

contingent consideration arrangement and the fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.  Acquisition-related costs are expensed

as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,

measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.  On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling

interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any 

previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.  If

those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the subsidiary acquired and the measurement of all amounts has been

reviewed, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the

date of exchange.  The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained

from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability.  Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured 

to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

(j) Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more 

frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.  Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events 

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.  An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which 

the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are 

largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash generating units).  Non-financial assets other than goodwill 

that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss unless the asset has previously been revalued, in which case the impairment is recognised as 

a reversal to the extent of that previous revaluation with any excess recognised in the profit and loss.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents
For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call or with maturities

 of three months or less with financial institutions.

(l) Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less 

provision for impairment.  Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 30-90 days.

The collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off by reducing the

carrying amounts directly.  A provision for impairment of trade receivables is used when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able

to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.  Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor

will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (not settled within the terms and conditions that have

been agreed with the relevant customer) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.   The amount of the provision is the

difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest

rate.  Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss in other expenses.  When a trade receivable for which a provision for impairment 

had been recognised becomes uncollectible in a subsequent period, it is written off against the provision.  Subsequent recoveries of amounts 

previously written off are credited against other expenses in profit or loss.

Other receivables are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are written down to their recoverable amount when this amount is in excess of the 

carrying value.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(m) Program rights
Television program rights are carried at the lower of cost less amortisation and net recoverable amount. Cost comprises acquisition of program

rights and, for programs produced using the Group’s facilities, direct labour and materials and directly attributable fixed and variable overheads.

Recognition

Television program assets and program liabilities are recognised from the commencement of the rights period of the contract. Contract payments 

made prior to commencement of the rights period are disclosed as a prepayment and included under television program rights and inventories.

Amortisation policy

The Group’s amortisation policy requires the amortisation of purchased programs on a straight line basis over a life of one year from commencement 

of the rights period or over the rights period of the contract (whichever is the lesser). Produced programs are expensed on telecast or in full on the 
twelfth month after completion period.

(n) Inventories
Finished goods, raw materials and stores are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Cost comprises expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories, direct labour and materials, directly attributable fixed and variable overheads and also includes the transfer from other

comprehensive income of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges relating to foreign currency purchases of inventory.  Costs are

assigned to individual items of inventory, generally on the basis of first-in first-out.  Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(o) Investments and other financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.  They arise

when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of selling the receivable.  They are included in current

assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting period which are classified as non-current assets.  Loans and

receivables are included in receivables in the statement of financial position. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

(ii) Other Investments
These unlisted equity securities are available for sale non-derivative assets in which the Group does not have significant influence or control.  
They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the

asset. Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit and loss, are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Financial

assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value or cost if fair value cannot be reliably measured.  Unrealised gains and losses

arising from changes in their fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in other comprehensive income are

included in profit or loss as gains and losses from investment securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices.  For financial assets in a market that is not active and for unlisted securities,

the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques.  These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,  reference to other 

instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making  maximum  use of market inputs

and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(o) Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(ii) Other Investments (continued)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is 

impaired.  In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of a security below its 

cost is considered in determining whether the security is impaired.  If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,  the  cumulative 

loss (measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial  asset previously

recognised in profit or loss) is reclassified from equity and recognised in profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.  Impairment losses

recognised in profit or loss on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not reversed through profit or loss.

If there is evidence of impairment for any of the Group's financial assets carried at amortised cost, the loss is measured as the difference between

the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred.

The cash flows are discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The loss is  recognised in profit or loss.

(p) Derivatives and hedging activities
The Group is party to derivative financial instruments on recognised liabilities in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates.  These derivatives are designated as cash flow hedges.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value 

at the end of each reporting period.  The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship  between hedging instruments and

hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.  The Group also documents its

assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions have been and will

continue to be highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items.  The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated

as cash flow hedges are disclosed in note 16.  Movements in the hedging reserve in shareholders' equity are shown in the statement of changes in

equity.  The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item

(i.e. cash flows) is more than 12 months;  it is classified as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than

12 months.

The gain or loss from re-measuring the hedging instruments to fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a

hedging reserve, to the extent that the hedge is effective, and is recognised in profit or loss within finance costs when the hedged interest expense

is recognised.

The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or
loss.  When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately reclassified

to profit or loss.

(q) Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost to the Group less depreciation.  Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly 

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 

economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any 

component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced.  All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during 

the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(q) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Land is not depreciated. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the life of the lease of each property or the life of the asset. 

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated 

useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 40 years

Printing presses and publishing equipment 15 years

Other plant and equipment 3-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount 

is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (refer 

note 1(j)). Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss.

(r) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired 

subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition.  Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.

Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and jointly controlled entities is included in investments in associates and jointly controlled entities. Goodwill

is not amortised.  Instead, goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might

be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.  Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the  carrying amount

of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing.  The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or

groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose, identified according

to operating segments (refer note 2).

(ii) Newspaper mastheads and radio licenses
The newspaper mastheads and radio licences of the Group are carried at cost less accumulated impairment loses.  The carrying amounts of these

assets are not amortised as the directors have determined them to have indefinite useful lives. Instead, newspaper mastheads and radio

licences are tested for impairment annually, or whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired (refer note 1(j)).  Newspaper mastheads

and radio licences are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

(iii) Magazine mastheads 
The magazine mastheads are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.  No amortisation is provided against the carrying amount as the

directors believe that the lives of these assets are indefinite.  Instead, magazine mastheads are tested for impairment annually, or whenever there

is an indication that they may be impaired (refer note 1(j)).  Magazines mastheads are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

(iv) Magazine licences 
The magazine licences are carried at the cost of acquisition less accumulated impairment losses and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the

period of the licences ranging from 8 to 25 years.

(v) Television licences
The television licences are renewable every five years under the provisions of the Broadcasting Services Act 1992.  The directors have no reason to

believe that they will not be renewed.  Television licences are considered to have an indefinite useful life and no amortisation is charged.  Instead,

television licences are tested for impairment annually, or whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired (refer note 1(j)).  Television 

licences are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

(vi) Program copyrights
Program copyrights are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses and are amortised on a straight line basis over the period of the contract.

(vii) Computer software
Costs incurred in developing products or systems and costs incurred in acquiring software and licences that will contribute to future period

financial benefits through revenue generation and/or cost reduction are capitalised to software. Costs capitalised include external direct costs

of materials and service.  Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over periods generally ranging from three to five years.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(s) Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.  The amounts

are unsecured and are usually paid within 30-60 days of recognition.

(t) Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.  Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.  Any

difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method. Any related accrued interest is included in trade creditors and accruals.

(u) Provisions
Provisions for libel and legal claims against the Group are recognised when it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 

it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.  Provisions 

are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end 

of the reporting period.  The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time

value of money and the risks specific to the liability.  The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

A make-good provision is recognised for the costs of restoration or removal in relation to property, plant and equipment where there is a legal or

constructive obligation. The provision is initially recorded when a reliable estimate can be determined and is discounted to its present value. 

The unwinding of the effect of discounting on the provision is recognised as a finance cost.

(v) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the

period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.  The liability for annual leave is recognised in the provision

for employee benefits.  Sick leave is recognised in profit or loss when the leave is taken and measured at the rates paid.

(ii) Long-term employee benefit obligations
The liability for long service leave which is not expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render

the related service is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected future payments to be

made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method.  Consideration

is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service.  Expected future payments are

discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match,

as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

(iii) Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to executives and employees in accordance with the Company's share purchase and loan

plans and employment agreements.  Information relating to these plans is set out in note 30.

The fair value of the rights granted is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total

amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the rights granted, which includes any market performance conditions

but excludes the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions and the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of rights that are expected to vest.  The total expense is

recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.  At the end of

each period, the entity revises its estimate of the number of rights that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions.

It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(v) Employee benefits (continued)
(iv) Short term incentives and bonus plans
A liability for employee benefits in the form of short term incentives and bonus plans is recognised in the provision for employee benefits when

there is no realistic alternative but to settle the liability and at least one of the following conditions is met:

- there are formal terms in the plan for determining the amount of the benefit

- the amounts to be paid are determined before the time of completion of the financial report, or

- past practice gives clear evidence of the amount of the obligation.

Liabilities for short term incentives and bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts expected

to be paid when they are settled.

(v) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary

redundancy in exchange for these benefits.  The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating

the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as

a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.  Benefits falling due more then 12 months after the end of the reporting period

are discounted to present value.

(vi) Superannuation
Contributions made by the Company to defined contribution employee superannuation funds are charged to profit or loss in the period employees' 

services are provided.

(w) Share capital
Ordinary shares and convertible preference shares  are classified as equity (for information on ordinary shares and convertible preference shares,
refer to note 20). Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

(x) Dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or

before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

(y) Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the after tax

effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(iii) Retrospective Adjustments
If the number of ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a capitalisation bonus issue or share split, or decreases as 

a result of a reverse share  split, the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for all periods presented shall be adjusted

 retrospectively. In addition, basic and diluted earnings per share of all periods presented shall be adjusted for the effects of errors and adjustments

 resulting from changes in accounting policies, accounted for retrospectively.

(z) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised exclusive of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation 

authority.  In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.  Receivables and payables are

stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable.  The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is

included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis.  The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are recoverable 

from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(aa) Rounding of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, relating to the 

"rounding off" of amounts in the financial statements.  Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off in accordance with that 
Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, the nearest dollar.

(ab) New accounting standards and interpretations
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 29 June 2013, and have 

not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. None of these are expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated

financial statements of the Group however an assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations is set out below:

(i) AASB 9 Financial Instruments, AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 and AASB 2010-7 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) and AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards-Mandatory Effective Date of AASB9 and Transition Disclosures (effective from 1 January 2015)

AASB 9 Financial Instruments  addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. 

The standard is not applicable until 1 January 2015 but is available for early adoption. Under AASB 9, financial assets are classified and measured 

based on the business model in which they are held and the characteristics of their contractual cash flows.

There will be no significant impact on the Group's accounting for financial assets or liabilities as the new requirements only affect the accounting for

financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit and loss. The Group's current financial instruments measured through 

profit and loss will expire in the next financial year before this standard is effective. The Group does not plan to adopt this standard early.

(ii) AASB10 Consolidated Financial Statements, AASB 11 Joint Arrangements, AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, revised AASB 127 

Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures and AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards and AASB 2012-10 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards- Transition Guidance and Other Amendments (effective 1 January 2013)

In August 2011, the AASB issued a suite of five new and amended standards which address the accounting for joint arrangements, consolidated

financial statements and associated disclosures. 

AASB 10 introduces a single control model to determine whether an investee should be consolidated.  The Group is in the process of performing

an analysis of the new guidance, however it does not expect the new AASB 10 standard to have a significant impact on it's composition.

The Group has yet to complete an assessment on the impact on it's various investees that may or may not be controlled under the new rules.

AASB 11 introduces a principles based approach to accounting for joint arrangements. The focus is no longer on the legal structure of joint 

arrangements, and although this is still an important consideration, the focus is on how rights and obligation are shared by the parties to the

 joint arrangement.  Based on the assessment of rights and obligations, a joint arrangement will be classified as either a joint operation or a joint venture.

Under AASB 11 new guidelines, the Group's investments in jointly controlled entities will be classified as joint ventures.  As the Group already

applied the equity method in accounting for these investments, AASB 11 will not have any impact on the amounts recognised in its financial statements.

Application of the disclosure requirements under AASB 12 will not affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements but will 

impact the type of information required to be disclosed in relation to the Groups investments. The Group does not expect to adopt the new  

standards before their operative date. They would therefore be first applied in the financial statements for the reporting period ending 30 June 2014.

(iii) AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 
(effective 1 January 2013)
AASB 13 was released in September 2011. It explains how to measure fair value and aims to enhance fair value disclosures. The Group is currently 

in the process of analysis and at this stage it is not possible to determine which, if any, of its current measurement techniques will have to change

as a result of the new guidance. It is therefore not possible to state the impact, if any, of the new rules on any of the amounts recognised in the

financial statements. However application of the new standard will impact the type of information disclosed in the notes to the financial 

statements. The Group does not intend to adopt the new standard before its operative date, which means that it would be first applied in the

 annual reporting period ending 30 June 2014.
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(ab) New accounting standards and interpretations (continued)
(iv) Revised AASB 119 Employee Benefits and AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian
 Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 

(effective 1 July 2013)
AASB 119 was revised in September 2011. It requires the recognition of all remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities/assets immediately

in other comprehensive income (removal of the so-called 'corridor' method), the immediate recognition of all past service cost in profit and 

loss and the calculation of a net interest expense or income by applying the discount rate to the net defined liability or asset. This replaces 

the expected return on plan assets that is currently included in profit or loss. The Group does not have any defined benefit plans and 

therefore does not intend to adopt the revised standard before its operative date.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that are expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current and future 

reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

(ac) Parent entity financial information
The financial information for the Parent Entity, Seven West Media Limited, disclosed in note 33 has been prepared on the same basis as the

consolidated financial statements, except as set out below.

(i) Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment losses in the financial statements of Seven West Media Limited. 

Dividends received from subsidiaries are recognised in the parent entity's profit and loss.

(ii) Financial guarantees
Where the Parent Entity has provided financial guarantees in relation to loans and payables of subsidiaries for no compensation, the fair values of

these guarantees are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.
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2. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Description of segments
The chief operating decision makers consider the business from both a product and a geographical perspective and have identified the following

reportable segments:

- Television (operation of commercial television stations)

- Newspapers (The West Australian newspaper and insert magazines and The Countryman and other newspapers published in regional areas of

Western Australia)

- Magazines (publisher of magazines)

- Other includes Quokka (a weekly classified advertising publication), Radio (radio stations broadcasting in regional areas of Western Australia),

ColourPress (commercial printing operation), digital publishing, West Australian Publishers, equity accounted investees including Yahoo!7 

and Community Newspapers, corporate costs and other minor operating segments.

The segment information in the previous year has been restated for a $9,623,000 reallocation of costs between Television and Corporate to 

reflect the current operating segments.

Revenue from external sales is predominantly to customers in Australia and total segment assets are predominantly held in Australia.

Total assets and liabilities by segment are not provided regularly to the chief operating decision maker and as such, are not required to be disclosed.

Total
Year ended 29 June 2013 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Total segment revenue 1,267,788      302,931            256,163           60,166             1,887,048        

Inter-segment revenue -                       -                           -                         (20,591)            (20,591)            

Revenue from continuing operations 1,267,788      302,931            256,163           39,575             1,866,457        

Profit before significant items, net finance costs,

    tax, depreciation and amortisation 319,616         107,461            36,306             16,621             480,004           

Depreciation and amortisation (i) (29,209)          (20,845)              (7,056)               (879)                  (57,989)            

Profit before significant items, net finance costs and tax 290,407       86,616             29,250            15,742            422,015         

Year ended 30 June 2012

Total segment revenue 1,262,305      348,231            287,196           61,788             1,959,520        

Inter-segment revenue -                       -                           -                         (22,413)            (22,413)            

Revenue from continuing operations 1,262,305      348,231            287,196           39,375             1,937,107        

Profit before significant items, net finance costs,

    tax, depreciation and amortisation 331,485         137,166            48,713             17,620             534,984           

Depreciation and amortisation (i) (30,656)          (20,958)              (8,877)               (1,070)               (61,561)            

Profit before significant items, net finance costs and tax 300,829       116,208           39,836            16,550            473,423         

(i) Excludes program rights amortisation which is treated consistently with other media content (refer note 4).

The chief operating decision makers assess the performance of the operating segments based on a measure of earnings before net finance costs 

and tax.  This measurement basis excludes the effects of significant expenditure from the operating segments.

A reconciliation of profit before significant items, net finance costs and tax to profit before tax is provided as follows:

2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Reconciliation of profit before significant items, net finance costs and tax
Profit before significant items, net finance costs and tax 422,015         473,423           

Finance income (refer note 6) 13,297            7,243                

Finance costs (refer note 6) (115,749)        (155,483)          

Profit before tax excluding significant items 319,563         325,183           

Significant items before tax (refer note 5) (308,374)        -                         

Profit before tax 11,189            325,183           

Magazines OtherTelevision Newspapers
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3. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Sales revenue
Advertising revenue (i) 1,445,071     1,520,117        

Circulation revenue 240,438         250,544           

Rendering of services 23,085            24,038             

Other revenue 157,863         142,408           

Total revenue 1,866,457     1,937,107        

Other income

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and computer software 260                  227                   

(i) The current year includes $23,562,000 of contra and advertorial revenue (2012: $23,400,000).

Includes all metro and regional advertising revenue from the placement of advertisements derived under broadcast licence agreements.

4. EXPENSES

Profit before tax includes the following specific expenses:

Depreciation and amortisation (excluding program rights amortisation) 57,989            61,561             

Advertising and marketing expenses 60,350            63,767             

Printing, selling and distribution (including newsprint and paper) 131,881         145,854           

Media content (including program rights amortisation) 583,776         565,527           

Employee benefits expense (excluding significant items) 403,488         414,234           

Raw materials and consumables used (excluding newsprint and paper) 9,904              10,354             

Repairs and maintenance 17,383            17,787             

Licence fees (excluding significant items) 71,716            71,929             

Licence fees change in estimate (significant item - refer note 5) (7,386)             -                         

Redundancy and restructure costs (significant item- refer note 5) 27,033            -                         

Other expenses from ordinary activities 123,466         132,982           

Total expenses (i) 1,479,600     1,483,995        

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment 40,769            46,465             

Intangible assets 17,220            15,096             

Depreciation and amortisation excluding program rights amortisation 57,989            61,561             

Television program rights amortisation 132,350         139,950           

Total depreciation and amortisation 190,339         201,511           

Included in the expense above are the following specific items:

Employee benefits expense 368,900         378,743           

Defined contribution superannuation expense 34,588            35,491             

Rental expense relating to operating leases 25,451            24,302             

(i) The current year includes $23,562,000 of contra and advertorial expenses (2012: $23,400,000).
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5. SIGNIFICANT ITEMS
Profit before tax expense includes the following specific expenses for which disclosure is relevant in explaining the financial performance 

of the Group:

2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Impairment of Magazine mastheads, licences and goodwill (i) (220,774)        -                         

Impairment of other mastheads (ii) (6,500)             -                         

Total Impairment of intangible assets (227,274)        -                         

Impairment of equity accounted investees (iii) (61,453)          -                         

Impairment of intangible assets and equity-accounted investees (288,727)        -                         

Redundancy and restructure costs (iv) (27,033)          -                         

Change in estimate of Television licence fee (v) 7,386              -                         

Total significant items before tax (308,374)        -                         

Tax benefit 13,441            -                         

Net significant items after tax (294,933)        -                         

(i) Impairment losses on Magazine intangible assets were recognised during the year following an assessment of their recoverable amounts.

The impairments largely reflected the continuing subdued nature of the advertising market and structural challenges facing the publishing

industry. The total impairment comprises amounts of $69,783,000 for mastheads, $18,793,000 for licences and $132,198,000 for goodwill.

 Refer note 15 for additional information on intangible assets.

(ii) An impairment loss on Quokka masthead (a weekly classified advertising publication) was recognised during the year following an 

assessment of its recoverable amount. The impairment largely reflected the difficult advertising market and increasing digital competition.

(iii) An impairment loss of $60,203,000 on SWM's investment in Yahoo!7 was recognised  during the year following an assessment  of its recoverable

amount. The impairment largely reflected the deterioration in the results of Spreets, its group buying business. An impairment loss of 

$1,250,000 was recognised in relation to other equity accounted investees. 

(iv) The redundancy and restructure costs are related to the cost reduction programs which are addressing efficiencies in operating procedures

and processes across the Group.

(v) In March 2013 the Television Licence Fees Amendment Bill 2013 provided for the 50 per cent reduction in the licence fees paid by commercial

television broadcasters to be made permanent in legislation on an ongoing basis. The television licence fee accrual, which is based on estimates,

was reduced in line with the amended legislation.

6. NET FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs (115,749)        (151,964)          

Ineffective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges -                         (3,519)               

Total finance costs (115,749)        (155,483)          

Finance income 9,606              7,243                

Ineffective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 3,691              -                         

Total finance income 13,297            7,243                

Net finance costs (102,452)        (148,240)          
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7. TAXES
2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss

Current year tax expense (84,371)          (105,571)          

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 1,998              607                   

Current tax expense (82,373)          (104,964)          

Deferred tax benefit 1,426              6,670                

Total tax expense (80,947)          (98,294)            

Reconciliation of tax expense to prima facie tax payable

Profit before tax 11,189            325,183           

Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2012: 30%) (3,357)             (97,555)            

Tax effect of amounts which are not (deductible)/taxable in calculating taxable income:

Share of net profit of equity-accounted investees 4,575              6,025                

Deferred tax benefit (expense) related to equity accounted investees 5,902              (4,742)               

Deferred tax assets not recognised in relation to impairment of assets (86,618)          -                         

Other changes in recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities (1,097)             (1,655)               

Other non-assessable / (non-deductible) items (2,350)             (974)                  

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 1,998              607                   

Tax expense (80,947)          (98,294)            

Tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Cash flow hedges 551                  1,858                

Tax recognised directly in equity

Deferred tax benefit 2,253              359                   

Total tax recognised directly in equity 2,253              359                   

Deferred tax asset not recognised

Deductible temporary differences 193,269         120,843           
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7. TAXES (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Recognised in

Balance Recognised  other comp- Recognised Balance

1 July in profit or rehensive directly in 29 June

2012 loss income equity 2013

Year ended 29 June 2013 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Trade and other receivables 10,177             (2,415)               -                         -                         7,762                

Program rights and inventories (40,407)            (2,040)               -                         -                         (42,447)            

Equity accounted investees (5,902)               5,902                -                         -                         -                         

Intangible assets  (7,530)               472                   -                         -                         (7,058)               

Property, plant and equipment (8,228)               845                   -                         -                         (7,383)               

Trade and other payables 38,681             (3,995)               -                         -                         34,686             

Provisions 24,530             1,565                -                         -                         26,095             

Deferred income 2,563                3,087                -                         -                         5,650                

Cash flow hedges 1,883                742                   551                   -                         3,176                

Transaction costs 6,754                (2,705)               -                         2,253                6,302                

Other (481)                  (32)                    -                         -                         (513)                  

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 22,040             1,426                551                   2,253                26,270             

Recognised in

Balance Recognised  other comp- Recognised Balance

26 June in profit or rehensive directly in 30 June

2011 loss income equity 2012

Year ended 30 June 2012 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Trade and other receivables 15,223             (5,046)               -                         -                         10,177             

Program rights and inventories (51,843)            11,436             -                         -                         (40,407)            

Equity accounted investees (4,610)               (1,292)               -                         -                         (5,902)               

Intangible assets (9,041)               1,511                -                         -                         (7,530)               

Property, plant and equipment (11,937)            3,709                -                         -                         (8,228)               

Trade and other payables 40,661             (1,980)               -                         -                         38,681             

Provisions 23,643             887                   -                         -                         24,530             

Deferred income 2,532                31                      -                         -                         2,563                

Borrowings 2,448                (2,448)               -                         -                         -                         

Cash flow hedges 1,088                (1,063)               1,858                -                         1,883                

Transaction costs 5,373                1,022                -                         359                   6,754                

Other (384)                  (97)                    -                         -                         (481)                  

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 13,153             6,670                1,858                359                   22,040             
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8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Current
Cash at bank, on hand and at call 257,316         75,052             

Cash at bank and deposits at call bear interest at a floating weighted average rate of 3.57% at the reporting date (2012: 4.07%).  The maximum

exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount.  The exposure to interest rate risk is discussed in note 31.

9.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Current
Trade receivables 307,533         360,920           

Provision for doubtful debts (8,395)             (7,604)               

Provision for sales credits and returns (24,443)          (25,210)            

274,695         328,106           

Other receivables 3,410              1,759                

278,105         329,865           

Trade receivables are generally settled within 30-90 days.

The aging of the Group's trade receivables net of provision  for sales credits and returns at the reporting date was:

Provision for Provision for

doubtful doubtful

Gross debts Gross debts

2013 2013 2012 2012

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Not past due 259,215         -                         307,232           -                         

Past due 0-30 days 19,528            (4,857)             22,918             (4,670)               

Past due 31-120 days 4,157              (2,978)             4,913                (2,306)               

Past due 120+ days 190                  (560)                 647                   (628)                  

283,090         (8,395)             335,710           (7,604)               

Movements in the provision for doubtful debts are as follows:

2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 7,604              7,645                

Provision for doubtful debts recognised during the year 423                  201                   

Receivables written off 368                  (242)                  

Balance at the end of the financial year 8,395              7,604                

Fair value risk
Due to the short-term nature of these receivables, their carrying amount is assumed to approximate their fair value.

Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date is the carrying amount of the assets. The fair value of security collateral held is insignificant.

Interest rate risk
The Group's current receivables generally do not bear interest.

Foreign exchange risk
Information about the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk in relation to trade and other receivables is provided in note 31.

Refer to note 31 for further information on the risk management policy of the Group.
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10. PROGRAM RIGHTS AND INVENTORIES
2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Current
Television program rights at cost less accumulated amortisation 93,026            86,482             

Newsprint and paper – at cost 13,796            17,503             

Work in progress – at cost 5,865              7,871                

Other raw materials and stores – at net realisable value 4,524              4,275                

Finished goods – at cost 297                  311                   

117,508         116,442           

Non-current
Prepaid television program rights -                         4,035                

Program rights and inventory expense

Program rights and inventories recognised as an expense during the year ended 29 June 2013 amounted to $132,350,000 (2012: $139,950,000)

and $67,663,000 (2012: $77,341,000) respectively.

11. OTHER ASSETS

Current
Prepayments 5,105              7,862                

Non-Current
Prepayments 1,789              1,881                

Other 1,402              914                   

3,191              2,795                

12. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES

Non-current
Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities 304,394         351,766           

Information relating to associates and jointly controlled entities (all of which are incorporated in Australia) is set out in the tables below:

2013 2012
Name of entity Reporting date % %

Airline Ratings Pty Limited (i) Ratings service provider 30 June 50.0                 -                         

Australian News Channel Pty Limited Pay TV channel operator 30 June 33.3                 33.3                  

Bloo (WA) Pty Limited Online business directory 30 June 27.8                 27.8                  

Community Newspaper Group Limited Newspaper publishing 30 June 49.9                 49.9                  

Coventry Street Properties Pty Limited Property management 30 June 50.0                 50.0                  

Health Engine Pty Limited (ii) Online Health Directory 30 June 22.3                 -                         

Hybrid Television Services (ANZ) Pty Limited (iii) TiVo distributor 30 June 66.7                 66.7                  
Impact Merchandising Pty Limited Visual merchandising services 30 June 50.0                 50.0                  

Oztam Pty Limited Ratings service provider 31 December 33.3                 33.3                  

Perth Translator Facility Pty Limited Transmitter facilities provider 30 June 33.3                 33.3                  

TX Australia Pty Limited Transmitter facilities provider 30 June 33.3                 33.3                  

Yahoo! Australia and New Zealand (Holdings) Pty Limited Internet content provider 31 December 50.0                 50.0                  

Ownership interest

Principal activities
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12. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES (CONTINUED)
(i) Seven West Media acquired 50% of Airline Ratings Pty Limited during the year for $500,000. $300,000 was paid in cash and $200,000 is 

outstanding at 29 June 2013.

(ii) Seven West Media acquired 22.3% of Health Engine Pty Limited during the year for $2,600,000. The consideration consists of $1,600,000 

cash and $1,000,000 in support and services. A further $2,600,000 is payable for additional shares if agreed financial targets are met.

(iii) Under the shareholder agreement, Seven West Media and the other shareholders have equal voting rights and Board representation.

 As a result, the investment in Hybrid Television Services (ANZ) Pty Limited is equity accounted.

2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Movements in carrying amounts

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year 351,766         346,815           

Impairment of equity accounted investees (refer note 5) (61,453)          -                         
Acquisitions/other movements 3,100              2,200                
Share of profit of investees after tax 15,251            20,084             
Dividends received (4,270)             (17,333)            

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year 304,394         351,766           

Share of equity accounted investees' net profit

Profit before tax 21,661            28,689             
Tax expense (6,410)             (8,605)               

15,251            20,084             

Summarised financial information of equity accounted investees (100%)
Revenues 242,535         261,875

Expenses (194,135)        (197,336)          

Profit after tax as reported by investees 48,400            64,539             

Current assets 116,889         95,951             
Non-current assets 116,851         172,926           

Total assets 233,740         268,877           

Current liabilities (49,271)          (56,988)            
Non-current liabilities (53,703)          (47,068)            

Total liabilities (102,974)        (104,056)          

Share of equity accounted investees' net assets 304,394         351,766           

Share of equity accounted investees' capital commitments 360                  2,460                

Contingent Liabilities
There were no contingent liabilities in respect of any equity accounted investees at year end.

Share of net profit of equity accounted investees disclosed in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
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13. OTHER INVESTMENTS
2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Non-current  

Unlisted equity securities 777                  777                   

The investment in unlisted securities is stated at cost because its fair value cannot be reliably measured.

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Non-current assets
Freehold land and buildings - at cost 107,231         106,687           

Accumulated depreciation (28,216)          (25,841)            

79,015            80,846             

Leasehold improvements - at cost 19,501            19,511             

Accumulated depreciation (10,363)          (5,393)               

9,138              14,118             

Residential properties (land) - at cost 2,940              2,940                

Plant and equipment - at cost 340,906         325,782           

Accumulated depreciation (190,642)        (161,276)          

150,264         164,506           

Total property, plant and equipment - at cost 470,578         454,920           

Accumulated depreciation (229,221)        (192,510)          

241,357         262,410           

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Year ended 30 June 2012

Opening net book amount 76,886                     18,436             2,940                183,819           282,081           

Additions 6,267                       49                      -                         20,679             26,995             

Disposals -                                 -                         -                         (201)                  (201)                  

Transfers -                                 87                      -                         (87)                    -                         

Depreciation charge (2,307)                      (4,454)               -                         (39,704)            (46,465)            

Closing net book amount 80,846                     14,118             2,940                164,506           262,410           

Year ended 29 June 2013

Opening net book amount 80,846                     14,118             2,940                164,506           262,410           

Additions 545                           -                         -                         19,435             19,980             

Disposals -                                 -                         -                         (264)                  (264)                  

Depreciation charge (2,376)                      (4,980)               -                         (33,413)            (40,769)            

Closing net book amount 79,015                     9,138                2,940                150,264           241,357           

Freehold land 
and

buildings
Plant and

equipment Total

Leasehold 
improve-

ments
Residential
properties
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Television licences - at cost 2,300,000     2,300,000        

Magazine licences - at cost 38,080            38,080             

Magazine licences - accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (29,602)          (6,811)               

Radio licences - at cost 17,316            17,316             

Total licences 2,325,794     2,348,585        

Magazine mastheads - at cost 129,731         129,731           

Magazine mastheads-impairment losses (69,783)          -                         

Newspaper mastheads - at cost 82,497            82,497             

Other mastheads- at cost 18,061            18,061             

Other mastheads- impairment losses (6,500)             -                         

Total mastheads 154,006         230,289           

Television program copyrights - at cost 20,848            20,848             

Accumulated amortisation (8,848)             (4,848)               

Total television program copyrights 12,000            16,000             

Software - at cost 41,314            40,589             

Accumulated amortisation (18,951)          (19,968)            

Total software 22,363            20,621             

Goodwill 1,250,050     1,250,050        

Impairment losses (132,198)        -                         

Total goodwill 1,117,852     1,250,050     

Total intangible assets 3,632,015     3,865,545     

Program Computer

Licences Mastheads copyrights software (i) Goodwill Total
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Year ended 30 June 2012

Opening net book amount 2,354,102        230,289                   20,000             20,589             1,250,050        3,875,030        

Additions -                         -                                 -                         5,611                -                         5,611                

Amortisation charge (ii) (5,517)               -                                 (4,000)               (5,579)               -                         (15,096)            

Closing net book amount 2,348,585       230,289                   16,000             20,621             1,250,050       3,865,545       

Year ended 29 June 2013

Opening net book amount 2,348,585        230,289                   16,000             20,621             1,250,050        3,865,545        

Additions -                         -                                 -                         10,964             -                         10,964             

Amortisation charge (ii) (3,998)               -                                 (4,000)               (9,222)               -                         (17,220)            

Impairment loss (iii) (18,793)            (76,283)                    -                         -                         (132,198)          (227,274)          

Closing net book amount 2,325,794       154,006                   12,000             22,363             1,117,852       3,632,015       

(i) Software additions for the year include $10,638,000 (2012: $4,110,000) which were acquired separately and $326,000 (2012: $1,501,000)

which were internally generated. Software additions include $1,875,000 for which cash payments have not yet been made.

(ii) Amortisation of $17,220,000 (2012: $15,096,000) is included in depreciation and amortisation expense in the comprehensive income
 statement (refer note 4).

(iii) Impairment of $220,774,000 for Magazine intangible assets and $6,500,000 for other intangible assets were recognised during the year 
(refer note 5).
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Impairment of cash generating units (CGU) including goodwill and indefinite life assets

Management and the Directors reviewed the carrying values of all intangible assets at reporting date to ensure that no amounts were in 

excess of their recoverable amounts.

Total impairments of $227,274,000, as detailed above were recognised during the current year (refer note 5).

No other impairment losses for intangible assets have been incurred or reversed during the current or prior years. 

The estimated recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (CGUs) were performed using the following methodologies:

Television

Discounted cash flow projections over the assets' useful lives based on the following assumptions:

- Five year forecast based on financial budgets and forecasts approved by management which are in line with the announced cost management

programs;

- Average annual revenue growth rate over the 5 year forecast period of 3.4% (June 2012: 4.0%);
- Pre-tax discount rate of 13.56% (June 2012: 13.5%);

- Terminal growth rate of 3.0% (June 2012: 4.0%).

Newspapers and Other WA

Discounted cash flow projections over the assets' useful lives based on the following assumptions:

- Five year forecast based on financial budgets and forecasts approved by management; 

- Pre-tax discount rate of 17.0% (June 2012: 14%);

- Terminal growth rate of 1.0% (June 2012: 2%).

Magazines

Relief from Royalty Method over magazine mastheads' useful lives based on the following assumptions:

- Future maintainable revenue forecasts which are based on historical actual results as well as financial budgets and forecasts approved by 

management; 

- Royalty rates between 1.5% and 11.0% (June 2012: 1.5% and 11.0%);

- Earnings multiples between 4x and 6x (June 2012: 8x and 10x).

Multi Period Excess Earnings Methodology over magazine licences' useful lives based on the following assumptions:

- Five year forecast based on financial budgets and forecasts approved by management; 

- Discount rates between 14.0% and 16.0% (June 2012: 14.0% and 16.0%);

- Terminal growth rate of 2.0% (June 2012: 2.0%).
The recoverable amount of the overall Magazine CGU that includes goodwill is determined  based on value in use and using discounted cash flow 
projections based on the following assumptions:
- Five year forecast based on financial budgets and forecasts approved by management; 

- Pre-tax discount rate of 15.0% (June 2012: 15.2%);

- Terminal growth rate of 2.0% (June 2012: 2.5%).

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future performance in each CGU based on historical experience 

and internal and external sources. The estimated recoverable amounts are highly sensitive to key assumptions.

Sensitivities to key assumptions

The estimated recoverable amount of the Television CGU, based on value in use, exceeds its carrying amount by approximately $2,400,000

Accordingly, currently no impairment is required. Any adverse movements in key assumptions would lead to further impairments

The recoverable amount for Newspapers and Other WA overall business is significantly higher than the carrying value, and as such, is not sensitive 

to reasonably foreseeable changes in key assumptions.

Following impairments to the individual and overall Magazine CGUs, the recoverable amounts are equal to the carrying amounts. Therefore any 

adverse movements in key assumptions would lead to further impairments.

Seven West Media does not consider that there are any reasonably possible changes to key assumptions of other significant intangible assets with 

indefinite useful lives and goodwill which would cause the carrying amounts to exceed recoverable amounts. 
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For the purpose of impairment testing, intangible assets with indefinite lives, including goodwill, are allocated to the Group’s operating divisions

which represent the lowest level within the Group at which the assets are monitored for internal management purposes. Intangible assets with 

indefinite useful lives of $3,260,875,000, including $960,875,000 goodwill, relate to the Television operating division, $84,055,000, including 

 $1,558,000 goodwill, relate to the Newspapers operating division, $214,441,000, including $154,493,000 goodwill, (June 2012:  $416,422,000,

 including $286,691,000 goodwill), relate to the Magazines operating division and $29,803,000, including $926,000 goodwill 

(June 2012: $36,303,000, including $926,000), relate to the Other WA intangible assets.

16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2013 2012

$’000 $’000

Current
Trade payables and other accrued expenses (i) 218,351         240,109           

Derivative financial liabilities 1,908              672                   

Television program liabilities (ii) 101,616         98,500             

321,875         339,281           

Non-current
Accruals 15,207            18,887             

Derivative financial liabilities 8,679              10,709             

Television program liabilities 12,051            9,961                

35,937            39,557             

Trade and other payables are generally settled within 30-60 days from the end of the month in which they are incurred and are non-interest bearing.

(i) Included in trade payables and accruals is an amount of $7,874,130 related to future minimum purchases of an associate (2012: $8,983,138).

This have been guaranteed by Seven Network (Operations) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary.

(ii) Included in television program liabilities is an amount of $4,381,000 (current: $4,381,000, non-current: $Nil) relating to onerous program

rights contracts recognised in accordance with AASB 137. During the year no amounts were recognised in the comprehensive income statement

and $16,923,000 was utilised.

In the prior year, $19,359,000 related to onerous program rights contracts (current: $13,758,000, non-current: $5,601,000), no amounts were

recognised in the income statement and $15,680,000 was utilised.

Interest rate swap and collar contract- cash flow hedges

The Group is party to derivative financial instruments in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposure to fluctuations in interest rates (refer

note 31).

Of the Group’s total debt, excluding unamortised refinancing costs, at 29 June 2013 of $1,508,482,000, (2012: $1,950,000,000), $400,000,000

 (2012: $800,000,000) is covered by interest rate swaps, designated as cash flow hedges. $400,000,000 of the swaps expired on 16 March 2013. 

The remainder of the swaps expire on 16 March 2014 and 16 March 2015. The current swaps fix the interest rate at a weighted average of 3.80%

(2012: 3.62%).  The Group also has interest rate collars of $600,000,000 (2012: $600,000,000) which include an interest 

rate cap at 5% and a floor at a weighted average of 3.13%. These collars expire on 16 March 2015.  

Interest rate swaps-fair valued through profit and loss
Of the Group’s total debt, excluding unamortised refinancing costs, at 29 June 2013 of $1,508,482,000, (2012: $1,950,000,000), $45,000,000

(2012: $80,000,000) is covered by interest rate swaps measured at fair value through profit and loss and not designated as cash flow hedges. 

These interest rate swap contracts expire on16 August 2013.

The current swaps have an interest rate at a weighted average of 5.24% (2012: 5.24%). 

The contracts require settlement on net interest receivable or payable on a quarterly basis.  For the majority of swaps the settlement

dates coincide with the dates on which interest is payable on the underlying debt.  The contracts are settled on a net basis.
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16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

The gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging instruments at fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, to the

extent that the hedge is effective, and reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged interest expense is recognised.  The ineffective portion, if any, is

recognised in profit or loss immediately.  The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated at the sum of the net present value of the each

 of the expected future cash flows.

At the reporting date, liabilities relating to these contracts amounted to $10,587,000 (2012: $11,381,000). In the year ended 29 June 2013 

there was a net loss from the decrease in fair value of interest rate swap and collar contracts of $1,379,000 (2012:  loss of $3,284,000).

Interest rate, credit and currency risk exposure

Refer to note 31 for the Group's exposure to interest rate risk on interest rate swaps and collars and foreign currency risk on trade and other

payables. Refer also to note 31 for the Group's exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the 

carrying amount of the asset. There are no receivables on derivatives at balance date.

17. PROVISIONS
2013 2012

$’000 $’000

Current
Employee benefits 59,131            62,297             

Redundancy and restructuring 16,103            451                   

Libel expenses 225                  225                   

Make good 479                  479                   

Other 900                  900                   

76,838            64,352             

Non-current
Employee benefits 8,683              8,661                

Make good 7,319              7,178                

Other 511                  511                   

16,513            16,350             

Movements in the provisions during the reporting period are as follows:

Employee Redundancy & Libel Make Good

Benefits (i) Restructuring (ii) (iii) (iv) Other Total
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Year ended 29 June 2013

Carrying amount at 1 July 2012 70,958             451                           225                   7,657                1,411                80,702             

Amounts provided 39,342             27,033                     -                         -                         -                         66,375             

Amounts utilised (42,486)            (11,381)                    -                         -                         -                         (53,867)            

Unwind of discount -                         -                                 -                         141                   -                         141                   

Carrying amount at 29 June 2013 67,814             16,103                     225                   7,798                1,411                93,351             

(i) Employee Benefits
The provision for employees relates to annual leave, long service leave and short term incentives.

It is expected that the majority of annual leave will be paid out in the next 12 months.  

(ii) Redundancy and restructuring 
During the year the Group recognised $27,033,000 of redundancy and restructure costs in relation to cost programs across the group (refer note 5).
The provision of $16,102,761 mainly relates to termination benefits and is based on a committed detailed plan. 
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17. PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)
(iii) Libel
The amount at the end of the reporting period represents a provision for libel claims against the Group in relation to published material.

(iv) Make Good
The Group is required to restore the leased premises of its offices, studios and other premises to their original condition at the end of the 
respective lease terms. A provision has been recognised for the present value of the estimated expenditure required to remove any leasehold
improvements.

18. DEFERRED INCOME
2013 2012

$’000 $’000

Current
Deferred revenue (i) 20,044                19,096

Non-current
Deferred revenue 7,539                  4,531                

(i) Includes $11,820,000 (2012: $12,270,000) of precharged magazine sales and subscriptions

19. BORROWINGS

Non-current
Bank loans – unsecured 1,498,106         1,929,799        

1,498,106         1,929,799        

Financial arrangements

In November 2011 the Group obtained unsecured syndicated credit facilities consisting of 3, 4 and 5 year tranches totalling $2,075,000,000

This included a $125,000,000 working capital facility. 

During the year, the 3 year $400,000,000 tranche was repaid in full along with $41,518,000 of the 4 year tranche. These repayments were funded 

out of the proceeds from the issue of new shares (refer note 20). At reporting date, the Group had access to unsecured syndicated credit 
facilities to a maximum of $1,508,482,000 (2012: $2,075,000,000).

The facilities are subject to a weighted average interest rate of 4.86% at 29 June 2013 (2012: 6.24%).

In addition, the $125,000,000 revolving working capital facility provided by the syndicate lenders was cancelled and the Group obtained access to a 

$20,000,000 multi option facility with Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited (ANZ). As at year end $11,900,000 of this facility was

utilised for the provision of bank guarantees.

The amount of these facilities undrawn at reporting date was $8,100,000 (2012: $113,600,000).

The unsecured bank loans are net of $10,376,000 (June 12: $20,201,000) unamortised refinancing costs.

The syndicated facilities are subject to certain covenants being:

(i) Total Interest Cover ratio:  the Total Interest Cover Ratio should exceed 3.00 times the interest expense on the Facilities and other financial 

indebtedness, net of interest income, adjusted for any hedging payments;

(ii) Total Leverage Ratio: the Total Leverage Ratio should not exceed 4.00 times the debt under the Facilities and other financial indebtedness of 

the Group, net of group cash and cash equivalents.

Fair value

The carrying amount and fair value of Group borrowings at the end of the financial year was $1,498,106,000 (2012: $1,929,799,000).

Risk exposures

Information about the Group’s exposure to interest rate changes is provided in note 31.
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20. SHARE CAPITAL
2013 2012

$’000 $’000

997,832,422 (2012: 664,733,554) Ordinary shares fully paid (notes 20(a) and 20(c)) 2,840,405         2,406,017        

2,500 (2012: 2,500) Convertible preference shares fully paid (notes 20(b) and 20(d)) 250,000             250,000           

3,090,405         2,656,017        

(a) Movements in ordinary share capital
2013 2012 2013 2012

Shares Shares $’000 $’000

Ordinary shares
Balance at the beginning of the year 664,733,554    608,792,249      2,406,017         2,239,061        

Movements during the year:

Shares issued pursuant to 1-for-2 entitlement offer (i) 333,055,818    -                            439,633             -                         

Shares issued pursuant to the executive and employee share plans 43,050                164,150              10                         394                   

Dividend reinvestment plan share issues -                            55,777,155        -                            166,203           

Transaction costs arising on share issues -                            -                            (7,508)                 -                         

Deferred tax recognised directly in equity -                            -                            2,253                  359                   

Movement in ordinary shares 333,098,868    55,941,305        434,388             166,956           

Balance at the end of the year 997,832,422    664,733,554      2,840,405         2,406,017        

The total number of shares issued by the Company is 999,160,872

 and differs from the amount included in share capital as follows:

Total shares issued by the Company 999,160,872    666,105,054      

Executive and employee share plans treated as options (ii) (1,328,450)        (1,371,500)         

Balance included in share capital 997,832,422    664,733,554      

(i) Seven West Media Limited completed a fully underwritten 1-for-2 accelerated renounceable entitlement offer of new Seven West Media Limited 

shares to raise $439,633,000 in August 2012. 333,055,818 shares were issued at a price of $1.32. The net proceeds, after transaction costs, of

$432,125,000, together with existing funds were used to repay debt. The total amount of debt repaid was $441,518,000.

(ii)  Outstanding loans pursuant to the executive and employee share plans are treated as options.

(b) Movements in convertible preference shares
2013 2012 2013 2012

Shares Shares $'000 $'000

Convertible preference shares (CPS)
Balance at the end of the year 2,500                  2,500                   250,000             250,000           

There were no movements during the year.

(c) Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company in proportion to the number of and

amounts paid on the shares held.

Ordinary shares have no par value and the Group does not have a limited amount of authorised capital.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is

entitled to one vote.
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20. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
(d) Convertible preference shares (CPS)
The full terms and conditions of the CPS are set out in Appendix C of the Explanatory Memorandum in the Proposal to Acquire Seven Media Group

issued by Seven West Media Limited (SWM) on 8 March 2011. A summary of these terms is described below and should be read in conjunction with

the full CPS Terms of Issue set out in Appendix C of the Proposal.

The total of 2,500 CPS were issued to Seven Group Holdings (SGH) at an issue price of $100,000 per CPS. These may be converted by SGH into a fixed

number of fully paid ordinary shares in SWM (SWM Shares) at any time after the release of SWM's accounts for the half-year ending 31 December 2013.

Earlier conversion by SGH of the CPS into SWM Shares is permitted where:

- A third party, other than SGH and its associates, makes a takeover bid for SWM that is unanimously recommended by the SWM Directors, or is

to acquire all SWM Shares under a scheme of arrangement that has become effective;

- To enable SGH to maintain a shareholding in SWM of no less than 29.6% (less an adjustment for any SWM Shares sold by SGH) in the event of

any issue of SWM Shares; and

- To the extent permitted by the SWM Board in writing.

At conversion by SGH, SWM may at its discretion elect whether to settle in SWM Shares or in cash. If SWM elects to settle in shares, the number of

SWM Shares into which each CPS will be converted will be calculated by multiplying the number of CPS being converted by the "conversion ratio."

The conversion ratio is equal to the issue price adjusted by 7.143% per annum (compounded on a semi-annual basis) up to the fifth anniversary of

the date of issue of the CPS and then adjusted by 9.143% per annum (compounded on a semi-annual basis) thereafter (the "adjusted issue price")

divided by the fixed conversion price of $6.68.

The conversion price is adjusted following any reconstruction, consolidation, division, reclassification, securities issue or rights offer (subject

to customary exceptions) to ensure that CPS holders are placed in a similar economic position prior to the occurrence of the event that gave rise to

the adjustment. Following the 1-for-2 rights issue the fixed conversion price was adjusted from $6.68 to $6.31.

The conversion price will also be adjusted downwards for any dividends paid to SWM Shareholders over and above an annual reference yield of 6.5%

(excluding franking credits), initially calculated with reference to the first full year of ordinary dividends for the 2012 financial year. The final dividend

for the 2012 financial year was paid in October 2012 (refer note 22) at which time the fixed conversion price was adjusted to $5.59 

There have been no further adjustments to the fixed conversion price during the financial year.

If SWM elects to settle in cash, SWM will pay a cash amount for each CPS equal to the number of SWM Shares into which the CPS would have been

converted multiplied by the average of the daily VWAPs (volume weighted average prices) of the SWM shares over the 10 trading days

commencing on the date of service of the conversion notice.

The CPS are otherwise redeemable by SWM at the adjusted issue price five years from the date of issue, and on every half-year anniversary thereafter,

at the sole discretion of SWM with the form of settlement also at the discretion of SWM, in either SWM Shares or cash. The CPS are also redeemable

at any time on the occurrence of standard tax and regulatory events. If SWM elects to settle in SWM Shares, the number of SWM Shares into which

each CPS will be converted will be calculated by dividing the adjusted issue price by the average of the daily VWAPs of the SWM shares over five trading

days prior to the date of conversion (calculated at a 5% discount). If SWM elects to settle in cash, SWM will pay a cash amount for each CPS equal to

the adjusted issue price. In the case of tax and regulatory events, SWM's obligations to settle in SWM Shares or in cash will be calculated using 103%

of the adjusted issue price.

SWM may not issue any preferred securities ranking ahead of the CPS without consent of the holders of 75% of the CPS. Voting rights are limited

to those set out in Listing Rule 6.3. The CPS do not confer any dividend rights, although the conversion price may be adjusted as described above.

Unless the CPS are redeemed, repurchased or exchanged by the fifth anniversary of their date of issue, SWM may not pay dividends, return capital

or otherwise distribute value to any equal or lower ranking security holders until all CPS have been redeemed, repurchased or exchanged (subject

to certain limited exceptions).

(e) Dividend reinvestment plan
For details relating to the dividend reinvestment plan see note 22

(f) Share buy-backs
During the year Seven west Media Limited purchased 164,406 shares on market. The shares were purchased by the Seven West Media Employee 
Share Plan Trust for the purpose of issuing shares under the Group employee share scheme. Refer note 21.

(g) Capital risk management
Information about the Group’s exposure to capital risk is provided in note 31.
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21. RESERVES
2013 2012

$’000 $’000

Equity compensation reserve 1,934              799                   

Reserve for own shares (1,517)             (1,300)               

Cash flow hedge reserve (5,680)             (4,392)               

(5,263)             (4,893)               

Nature and purpose of reserves
Equity compensation reserve

The equity compensation reserve is used to recognise the fair value of share rights granted as compensation.

Cash flow hedge reserve

The cash flow hedge reserve is used to record gains or losses on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge that are recognised directly in other 

comprehensive income, as described in note 1(p).  Amounts are recognised in profit or loss when the associated hedged transaction affects profit or loss.

Reserve for own shares

Treasury shares are shares in Seven West Media Limited that are held by the Seven West Media Employee Share Plan Trust for the purpose of 

issuing shares under the group employee share scheme. At 29 June 2013 the Trust held 493,217 of the group's shares (2012: 328,811).

For movements in reserves during the year, refer to the statement of changes in equity.

22. DIVIDENDS

Final ordinary dividend for the year ended 30 June 2012 of 6 cents per share (25 June 2011: 26 cents), 

fully franked based on tax paid at 30%, paid on 12 October 2012 (2011: 14 October 2011) 59,887            158,389           

Interim ordinary dividend for the year ended 29 June 2013 of 6 cents per share (30 June 2012: 19 cents), 

fully franked based on tax paid at 30%, paid on 2 April 2013 (2012: 2 April 2012) 59,888            122,490           

119,775         280,879           

Dividends not recognised at year end

In addition to the above dividends, since year end the directors have declared a 2013 final dividend of 6 cents per 

ordinary share (2012: 6 cents), fully franked based on tax paid at the rate of 30%.  The aggregate amount 

of the dividend payable on 11 October 2013, but not recognised as a liability at year end, is estimated at 59,889            59,826

Franked dividends

The franked dividend declared after 29 June 2013 will be franked out of existing franking credits or out of franking credits arising from the

receipt of franked dividends and the payment of tax in the year ending 28 June 2014.

Franking credits available for subsequent financial years based on a tax rate of 30% (2012: 30%) 32,813            6,678                

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking account as at the end of the financial year, adjusted for:

(a) franking credits that will arise from the payment of the current tax liability;

(b) franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at the reporting date; and

(c) franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables at the reporting date.

Dividend reinvestment plan
The Company had established a plan under which holders of ordinary shares could have elected to have all or part of their dividend entitlements

satisfied by the issue of new ordinary shares rather than being paid in cash. The operation of the dividend reinvestment plan for any dividends

 was at the discretion of the board. Upon completion of the Entitlement Offer in July 2012, the Dividend reinvestment plan was suspended.
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23. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS 
During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the parent entity and it's related practices.

2013 2012

$ $

Auditors of the Company - KPMG

(i) Audit and other assurance services

Audit or review of the financial statements 367,500              297,500                
Other audit and assurance services 103,933              148,066                

Total remuneration  for audit and other assurance services 471,433              445,566                

(ii) Other services

Advisory services 805,789              551,437                

Total remuneration of KPMG Australia 1,277,222          997,003                

24. CONTINGENCIES
Contingent liabilities

Seven West Media's tax liabilities have been calculated based on currently enacted legislation. Any changes to the tax law or interpretations

(including proposed changes already announced) may require changes to the calculation of the tax balances shown in the financial statements.

Participation in media involves particular risks associated with defamation litigation and litigation to protect media rights. The nature of 

the Group's activities is such that, from time to time, claims are received or made by the Group. The directors are of the opinion that there are

no material claims that require disclosure of such a contingent liability.
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25. COMMITMENTS
2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Capital expenditure commitments
Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment contracted for at the reporting date but not

recognised as liabilities, payable:

Within one year 6,866              3,379                
Later than one year but not later than five years 2,856              -                         

9,722              3,379                

Operating lease commitments
The Group leases various offices, equipment, sites and residential premises under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within one year 

to 17 years (2012: 18 years). The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are 

renegotiated.

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating leases contracted for at the reporting date but not 

recognised as liabilities, payable:

Within one year 20,261            18,475             
Later than one year but not later than five years 73,108            68,405             
Later than five years 142,743         159,904           

236,112         246,784           

Contracts for purchase of television programs and sporting broadcast rights

Commitments for minimum payments in relation to non-cancellable purchase contracts of television programs and sporting broadcast rights
at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities, payable:

Within one year 253,938         259,119           
Later than one year but not later than five years 575,195         516,354           
Later than five years 50,335            45,050             

879,468         820,523           

Contracts for employee services

Commitments for minimum payments in relation to non-cancellable contracts for employee services at the reporting date but not recognised as
liabilities, payable:

Within one year 56,348            56,965             
Later than one year but not later than five years 22,315            26,887             
Later than five years 63                                        - 

78,726            83,852             

Contracts for other services

Commitments for minimum payments in relation to non-cancellable contracts for other services at the reporting date but not recognised
 as liabilities, payable:

Within one year 24,929            33,143             
Later than one year but not later than five years 43,562            36,577             
Later than five years 10,414            16,919             

78,905            86,639             
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26. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
Key management personnel compensation 

In addition to their salaries, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to directors and executive officers, and contributes to a post-employment

superannuation fund on their behalf (refer to the remuneration report-section 2a).

Executive officers also participate in the Group's Equity Incentive Plan 2013 (refer note 30).

2013 2012

$ $

Key management personnel compensation
Short-term employee benefits 13,599,090       10,969,035           

Post-employment benefits

 - Superannuation 221,568             232,560                 

 - Termination benefits 974,585             1,898,111             

Share-based payments 1,326,821         621,137                 

16,122,064       13,720,843           

Detailed remuneration disclosures in respect of directors and each member of key management personnel are provided in the remuneration 
report in section 2a.

Equity instrument disclosures relating to key management personnel

Performance Right holdings

The numbers of performance rights over ordinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each director of Seven West Media Limited

and other key management personnel of the Group, including their personally-related parties, are set out below. 

The rights granted during the year have been offered under the Seven West Media Equity Incentive Plan 2013. Performance rights do not carry any 
dividend or voting rights prior to vesting (refer note 30).

2013 Balance at Granted Balance at 

the start of as compen- Expired or the end of 

the year sation Exercised forfeited the year Vested Unvested

Key management personnel of the Group:

TG Worner 76,122          516,528             -                            -                           592,650         25,374                  567,276                 

CS Wharton (ii) 111,067        206,611             -                            -                           317,678         -                             317,678                 

KJ Burnette -                      182,231             -                            -                           182,231         -                             182,231                 

N Chan -                      154,958             -                            -                           154,958         -                             154,958                 

PJ Lewis (i) -                      258,264             -                            (258,264)            -                       -                             -                               

RT Lund -                      203,512             -                            -                           203,512         -                             203,512                 

BI McWilliam -                      227,272             -                            -                           227,272         -                             227,272                 

2012

Key management personnel of the Group:

DJ Leckie (i) -                      126,871             -                            -                           126,871         -                             126,871                 

TG Worner -                      76,122               -                            -                           76,122            -                             76,122                   

CS Wharton (ii) 41,081          69,986               -                            -                           111,067         -                             111,067                 

(i) DJ Leckie and PJ Lewis resigned on 26 June 2012 and 30 April 2013 respectively and are no longer Key Management Personnel of the Group. 

(ii)  111,067 performance rights were granted to CS Wharton under the legacy executive LTI Plan for the Chief Executive Officer for West Australian 

Newspapers Holdings Limited. The operation of this plan has been suspended and no employees have been invited to apply for shares since 2002 and

 Mr Wharton has been transitioned to the Seven West Media LTI plan in FY13. The performance rights will vest (subject to performance criteria) in August 

2013 and August 2014.
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26. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
Shareholdings

The numbers of ordinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each director  of Seven West Media Limited and other key

management personnel  of the Group, including their personally-related entities, are set out below.

2013  Shares

 received Purchases and

Received as during the other 

Balance at part of retail year as changes Balance at 

the start of entitlement compen- during the the end of 

Name the year 1 for 2 offer sation year the year

Directors of Seven West Media Limited:

Ordinary shares

KM Stokes AC 221,219,452      166,471             93,801            132,075,574       353,555,298        

Dr ME Deaker (appointed 21 August 2012) -                            -                           14,892            -                             14,892                   

D Evans (appointed 21 August 2012) (i) 115,000              57,500               14,892            211,268               398,660                 

DR Flynn 38,886                19,443               20,249            -                             78,578                   

PJT Gammell 111,440              55,720               20,249            -                             187,409                 

GT John AO 56,065                28,033               19,706            -                             103,804                 

BI McWilliam (alternate) 416,417              194,627             -                       -                             611,044                 

JC Reizes 44,949                27,408               19,704            (55,248)                36,813                   

RK Stokes (appointed 21 August 2012) (ii) 81,330                40,665               14,892            -                             136,887                 

DR Voelte AO (Executive Director from 26 June 2012 until 30 June 2013) 42,462                21,231               1,945              85,000                  150,638                 

SMC Walsh AO (until 30 January 2013) 78,467                39,234               31,409            (127,852)              21,258                   

Convertible preference shares

KM Stokes AC 2,500                   -                           -                       -                             2,500                      

Other key management personnel of the Group:

Ordinary shares

KJ Burnette 5,843                   2,922                  -                       -                             8,765                      

N Chan 165,275              82,638               -                       (50,000)                197,913                 

B Fair (appointed 1 February 2013) 7,484                   -                           -                       -                             7,484                      

PJ Lewis (until 30 April 2013) 199,887              -                           -                       (199,887)              -                               

RT Lund (from 1 September 2012) 54,921                -                           -                       -                             54,921                   

CS Wharton 54,335                12,091               -                       -                             66,426                   

TG Worner (iii) 262,938              136,470             -                       (286,720)              112,688                 

(i) Opening number of shares were held under Zonda Capital Pty Ltd, of which Mr Evans is a Director and were acquired prior to Mr Evans being 

appointed as a non executive director of the Group.

(ii) Opening number of shares were held under Point Resolution Pty Ltd, of which Mr R Stokes is a Director and were acquired prior to Mr R Stokes 

being appointed as a non executive director of the Group.

(iii) TG Worner has been included as key management personnel for his role as Chief Executive Officer Television. He was appointed as Chief 

Executive Officer of Seven West Media from 1 July 2013.

(iv) DR Voelte AO was appointed as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer on 26 June 2012 until 30 June 2013. He was then appointed as 

Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors on 1 July 2013.

(v) JH Alexander was appointed as a Director on 2 May 2013 and had not received any shares as at 29 June 2013.
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26. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
2012 Shares 

received Purchases and

during the other 

Balance at year as changes Balance at 

the start of compen- during the the end of 

Name the year sation year the year

Directors of Seven West Media Limited:

Ordinary shares

KM Stokes AC 180,720,216     39,240            40,459,996         221,219,452        

DR Flynn 28,692               10,194            -                             38,886                   

PJT Gammell 19,612               10,192            81,636                  111,440                 

GT John AO 42,756               9,936              3,373                    56,065                   

DJ Leckie (until 26 June 2012) (i) 751,252             -                       -                             751,252 (ii)

BI McWilliam (alternate) 297,938 (iii) -                       118,482               416,420 (iii), (iv)

JC Reizes 32,603               9,936              2,410                    44,949                   

RK Stokes (alternate) 39,846               -                       41,484                  81,330                   

DR Voelte AO (executive director from 26 June 2012) 16,882               10,580            15,000                  42,462                   

SMC Walsh AO 47,763               21,929            8,775                    78,467                   

Convertible preference shares

KM Stokes AC 2,500                  -                       -                             2,500                      

Other key management personnel of the Group:

Ordinary shares

PJ Bryant 10,845               -                       1,700                    12,545                   

KJ Burnette 5,843                  -                       -                             5,843 (ii)

N Chan 165,275             -                       -                             165,275 (ii)

PJ Lewis 172,788             -                       27,099                  199,887 (ii), (iv)

CS Wharton 40,279               -                       14,056                  54,335                   

TG Worner 262,938             -                       -                             262,938 (ii)

(i) DJ Leckie resigned on 26 June 2012 and is not Key Management Personnel of the Group in 2013.

(ii) These shares were subject to an escrow which expired on the date the Company's results for the 2012 financial year were announced.

(iii) 290,103 of these shares were subject to an escrow which expired on the date the Company's results for the 2012 financial year are announced.

(iv) Prior year amounts have been restated to include all shares received during the year.

Other transactions with key management personnel

Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no Director has entered into a material contract with the Group since the end of the previous

financial year and there were no material contracts involving directors' interests existing at year end.
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27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Parent entity
Seven West Media Limited is the ultimate Australian parent entity within the Group.

Subsidiaries
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 28.

2013 2012

$ $

Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties during the financial year:

Sale of goods, advertising and other services

Equity accounted investees 10,823,512         11,881,603 

Director-related entities 494,777                 1,585,417 

Other related entities 2,036,566             2,841,940 

Purchase of goods, advertising and other services

Equity accounted investees 8,082,240             8,747,312 

Director related entities - AFL free-to-air television rights 81,250,750         44,027,500 

Director related entities - Other 3,932,038             4,817,794 

Other related entities 1,827,598             2,509,330 

Shareholder contribution

Equity accounted investees 1,364,051                 637,239 

Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods, advertising and other services
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:

Current receivables (sales of goods, advertising and other services)

Equity accounted investees 1,100,895             1,246,954 

Director-related entities 72,979                          73,316 

Other related entities 1,527,673             1,041,314 

Current payables (purchase of goods, advertising and other services)

Equity accounted investees 2,689,672             1,011,549 

Director-related entities -                                          2,569 

There is no allowance account for impaired receivables in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has been recognised in respect

of impaired receivables due from related parties.

Key management personnel
The following transactions occurred with KMP related parties:

2013 2012

$ $

Revenues (TV production charges) 86,820                          63,652 

Expenses (Funding contribution) 345,512                     426,734 

Terms and conditions
Transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions.
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28. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in accordance with the accounting

policy described in note 1(b).

2013 2012
Notes % %

Harlesden Investments Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Western Mail Operations Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

West Australian Newspapers Limited (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Albany Advertiser Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

ComsNet Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Colorpress Australia Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

ColourPress Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Geraldton Newspapers Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Geraldton FM Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Great Northern Broadcasters Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Herdsman Print Centre Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Herdspress Leasing Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Hocking & Co. Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Quokka West Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Redwave Media Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

North West Radio Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Australian Regional Broadcasters Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Spirit Radio Network Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

South West Printing and Publishing Company Limited (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Quokka Press Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

W.A. Broadcasters Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Dansted and McCabe Holdings Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Riverlaw Holdings Pty Limited (a) Australia 100                  100                   

West Australian Entertainment Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

WAN Cinemas Pty Limited (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Western Mail Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Westroyal Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100                  100                   

Australian National Television Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Australian Television International Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Australian Television Network Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Channel Seven Adelaide Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Channel Seven Brisbane Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Channel Seven MelbournePty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Channel Seven Perth Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Channel Seven Queensland Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Channel Seven Sydney Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Cobbittee Publications Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Dodds Street Properties Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Faxcast Australia  Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Jupelly Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Kenjins Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Pacific MM Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Pacific Magazines Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Pacific Magazines Trust Australia 100                  100                   

Pacific Magazines (No. 2) Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Pacific Magazines NZ Limited New Zealand 100                  100                   

Pacific Magazines (PP) Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Ownership interest
Country of 

incorporation
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28. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

2013 2012

Notes % %

Pacific Magazines (PP) Holdings Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Pacific Magazines (WHO) Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Red Music Publishing Pty Limited (d) Australia 100                  -

Red Publishing Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Seven Magazines Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Seven Network Programming Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Seven Network (Operations) Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Seven Regional Operations Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Seven Satellite Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Seven West Media Investments Pty Limited (c), (e) Australia 100                  100                   

Seven Television Australia Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

SMG Executives Pty Limited Australia 100                  100                   

SMG H1 Pty Limited (b) Australia 100                  100                   

SMG H2 Pty Limited (b) Australia 100                  100                   

SWM Finance Pty Limited (b) Australia 100                  100                   

SMG H4 Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

SMG H5 Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Southdown Publications Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Sunshine Broadcasting Network Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

The Pacific Plus Company Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

West Central Seven Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Wide Bay - Burnett Television Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Zangerside Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

Zed Holdings Pty Limited (c) Australia 100                  100                   

(i) All subsidiaries are wholly-owned. 

The class of all shares is ordinary except for 100,000 preference shares held in West Australian Newspapers Limited (2012: 100,000).

(a) These controlled entities  entered into a Deed of Cross Guarantee with Seven West Media Limited under ASIC Class Order 98/1418 (as amended)

dated 8 April 2004  on 8 April 2004 or by Assumption Deeds prior to 30 June 2009.

(b) These controlled entities  joined Seven West Media Limited's Deed of Cross Guarantee under ASIC Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) dated

8 April 2004 on 20 June 2011 by Assumption Deed.

   

(c) These controlled entities  joined Seven West Media Limited's Deed of Cross Guarantee under ASIC Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) dated

8 April 2004 on 26 June 2012 by Assumption Deed.

(d) This controlled entity joined Seven West Media Limited's Deed of Cross Guarantee under ASIC Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) dated

8 April 2004 on 18 April 2013 by Assumption Deed.

(e) This entity was renamed on 16 April 2013 from SMG H2 (Victoria) Pty Limited to Seven West Media Investments Pty Limited.

Country of 
incorporation

Ownership interest
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28. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)
Pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) certain wholly-owned subsidiaries, as noted above, are relieved from the Corporations Act 2001

requirements for preparation, audit and lodgement of financial reports and directors’ reports.

It is a condition of the Class Order that the 'Holding Entity' and each of the wholly-owned subsidiaries enter into a Deed of Cross Guarantee under

which each company guarantees the debts of the others.

Seven West Media Limited and its subsidiaries represent a 'Closed Group' for the purposes of the Seven West Media Limited Class Order, and as there

are no other parties to its Deed of Cross Guarantee that are controlled by Seven West Media Limited, they also represent the 'Extended Closed Group.'

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 29 June 2013 of the Seven West Media Limited

Closed Group is presented below according to the Seven West Media Limited Class Order:

2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Statement of comprehensive income

Revenue 1,866,457     1,937,091        

Other income 260                  227                   

Revenue and other income 1,866,717     1,937,318        

Expenses (1,479,508)    (1,483,989)      

Share of net profit of equity accounted investees 15,251            20,084             

Impairment of intangible assets (227,274)        
Impairment of equity accounted investees (61,453)          -                         

Profit before net finance costs and tax 113,733         473,413           

Net finance costs (102,589)        (148,488)          

Profit before tax 11,144            324,925           

Tax expense (80,888)          (98,217)            

(Loss) profit for the year (69,744)          226,708           

Other comprehensive (expense) income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges (1,839)             (6,192)               

Tax relating to items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 551                  1,858                

Other comprehensive (expense) for the year, net of tax (1,288)             (4,334)               

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year attributable to owners of the Company (71,032)          222,374           
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28. INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)
The consolidated statement of financial position for the year ended 29 June 2013 of the Seven West Media Limited Closed Group is presented below

according to the Seven West Media Limited Class Order:

2013 2012

$'000 $’000

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 257,307         74,996             

Trade and other receivables 274,903         326,643           

Program rights and inventories 117,508         116,435           

Other assets 5,105              7,850                

Total current assets 654,823         525,924           

Non-current assets

Program rights and inventories -                         4,035                

Equity accounted investees 302,813         350,402           

Other investments 777                  777                   

Property, plant and equipment 241,357         262,399           

Intangible assets 3,632,015     3,865,545        

Deferred tax assets 26,270            22,036             

Other assets 3,191              2,795                

Total non-current assets 4,206,423     4,507,990        

Total assets 4,861,246     5,033,914        

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 320,434         338,017           

Provisions 76,838            64,341             

Deferred income 20,044            19,084             

Current tax liabilities 25,308            6,207                

Total current liabilities 442,624         427,649           

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 35,937            39,557             

Provisions 16,513            16,350             

Deferred income 7,539              4,531                

Borrowings 1,498,106     1,929,799        

Total non-current liabilities 1,558,095     1,990,237        

Total liabilities 2,000,719     2,417,886        

Net assets 2,860,527     2,616,028        

EQUITY
Share capital 3,087,924     2,653,753        

Reserves (3,708)             (3,555)               

Accumulated deficit (223,689)        (34,170)            

Total equity 2,860,527     2,616,028        
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29. EARNINGS PER SHARE
2013 2012

Basic earnings per share
(Loss) profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company (i) -7.1 cents 33.3 cents

Diluted earnings per share
(Loss) profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company (i) -6.1 cents 26.7 cents

2013 2012

$’000 $’000

Earnings used in calculating earnings per share
(Loss) profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company used in calculating basic and diluted

earnings per share. (69,758)                  226,889

2013 2012

Number Number

Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year used in the calculation of basic

earnings per share (i) 977,492,423        680,493,816     

Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:

- Convertible Preference Shares (CPS) (ii) 159,614,658        167,618,838       
- Shares issued pursuant to the suspended executive and employee share plans treated as options

deemed to have been converted into ordinary shares at the beginning of the financial year 1,349,975             1,548,648          
- Share rights issued pursuant to equity incentive plan 1,017,068             113,310               

Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary shares used as the denominator 

in calculating diluted earnings per share 1,139,474,124    849,774,612     

(i) AASB 133: Earnings per Share requires the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for all periods presented to be adjusted retrospectively 

for shares issued under a rights issue. Accordingly, the weighted average number of ordinary shares includes an adjustment relating to the shares

issued pursuant to the 1-for-2 entitlement offer completed in August 2012, for the period from 1 July 2012 to the dates when the shares were

issued. The June 2012 calculations also included the appropriate adjustments for the entitlement offer.

(ii) For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, a notional CPS amount has been calculated. At 29 June 2013 the notional CPS amount is 

$291,670,000. This is divided by the conversion price to calculate the notional number of shares. Under the terms of the CPS there is more than

one  basis of conversion. For the calculation of diluted EPS the "Redemption Conversion Price" based on an average weighted share price has been

used as the conversion price since this results in the most advantageous position for the holder of the CPS. This is in line with requirements of 

AASB 133: Earnings per Share. Refer note 20 for further details relating to the CPS.
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The total expense recognised for share-based payments for all plans during the financial year for the Group was $1,558,369 (2012: $940,176).

At 29 June 2013 the Group had the following share-based payment arrangements:

Performance and share rights granted as compensation

Seven West Media Equity Incentive Plan- 2013 Long Term Incentive

The Group established a 2013 long term incentive plan that entitles key management personnel to performance rights. Holders of vested rights 

are entitled to acquire fully paid ordinary shares in the Company.

A total of 1,749,376 performance rights were granted on 1 March 2013 and are awarded when the performances conditions are met. The

performance period commenced on 1 July 2012 and ends on 30 June 2015.

50% of the performance rights are subject to a total shareholder return (TSR) hurdle which compares the TSR performance of the Company 

with the TSR performance of each of the entities in a comparator group of peer companies. The remaining 50% is subject to a diluted 

earnings per share (DEPS) hurdle.

Performance rights do not carry any dividend or voting rights prior to vesting and are all equity settled. Vesting of the rights are subject to the 

condition that the executive remains employed by SWM at the vesting date. None of the performance rights have vested however 258,264 were 

forfeited or exercised during the year.

Prior to the introduction of the 2013 Long Term Incentive Plan in March 2013 there were other equity plans in place which continue to have 

some unvested awards at 29 June 2013.

Seven Media Group Performance Transitional Equity Grant

On 1 March 2012 the board approved the grant of 328,811 share rights to certain key management personnel and other senior executives in lieu

of a bonus payment for the 2011 financial year performance under the Seven Media Group Performance Management Plan 2011. This has

subsequently been renamed the Seven Media Group Performance Transitional Equity Grant.

The size of the award granted was dependent on Seven Media Group’s EBIT performance in the 2011 financial year. 

The share rights were granted over three separate tranches, each vesting on 1 October from 2012 to 2014.
All of the share rights are equity settled.

The share rights under the Seven Media Group Performance Transitional Equity Grant are subject to the same vesting conditions, as set out in 

the table on the following page. Prior to vesting, the share rights allocated represent a conditional entitlement to shares and do not attract the 
payment of dividends and do not entitle the executive to vote on the shares. Vesting of the share rights is subject to the condition that the

executive remains  employed by SWM at the relevant vesting date. 

During the year, a total of 109,605 share rights have vested under the Seven Media Group Performance Transitional Equity Grant (2012: Nil).

No further share rights under this scheme were exercised during the year.

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTI)- Chief Executive Officer

The CEO of West Australian Newspapers, Mr CS Wharton is entitled to receive share rights under the LTI plan. This plan has two hurdles, or 

assessment points, which ultimately determine the entitlement. The first hurdle provides access to the program, and establishes an unvested number

of share rights.  The second hurdle determines the number of shares that vest and thus will be received by Mr Wharton.

The maximum value of shares issued under the LTI program, assuming all hurdles are passed at the highest level, equates to 75% of Mr Wharton's 

fixed annual remuneration. All of the rights are equity settled.

No grant was made under this plan in respect of the 2012 financial year due to the Newspaper business performance during the period.

There were no rights which were forfeited or exercised during the year under this plan. No rights have yet expired and none have vested in 

2013 or in 2012. From the 2013 financial year Mr Wharton was transitioned to the Seven West Media Equity Incentive Plan.

Refer note 1(v)(iii) for accounting policy relating to share-based payments.
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

2013 Long 
Term Incentive Plan

Grant date 1 March 2013
Expiry date 22 August 2015
Award type Performance Rights
Vesting Conditions Service condition and TSR hurdle (50%)

Service condition and DEPS hurdle (50%)
End of performance period 30 June 2015
First Vesting Date 22 August 2015
Share price at grant date $2.32
Number of rights granted 1,749,376
Fair value at grant date TSR              $0.93

DEPS          $2.07

Exercise price $0.00
Volatility 50%
Risk free interest rate 2.67%
Dividend yield 4.6%
Valuation methodology TSR        Monte Carlo simulation

DEPS    Binomial Tree

Transitional Equity Grant
1st Grant 2nd Grant Initial Grant

Grant date 3 August 2010 12 August 2011 1 March 2012
Expiry date 3 August 2015 12 August 2016 1 October 2014
Award type Performance rights Performance rights Share rights
Vesting Conditions Relative TSR Relative TSR Service condition
End of performance period 3 August 2015 12 August 2016 Not applicable
First Vesting Date 3 August 2013 12 August 2014 1 October 2012
Share price at grant date $7.02 $2.77 $3.96
Number of rights granted 41,081 69,986 328,811
Fair value at grant date $4.95 $1.75 Tranche 1       $3.42

Tranche 2       $3.09
Tranche 3       $2.79

Exercise price $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Volatility 37% 37% 40%
Risk free interest rate 4.58% 3.76% 3.68 - 4.01%
Dividend yield 6.0% 10.0% 10.0%
Valuation methodology Monte Carlo simulation Monte Carlo simulation Binomial Tree

Shares granted as compensation

Non-executive directors share plan

In order to more closely align the interests of the non-executive directors with shareholder interests in the creation of value for shareholders as a   
whole, non-executive directors are obliged to receive at least 25% of their annual fees as shares in the Company. These shares are purchased on-
market at prevailing prices and are held in trust on behalf of the Directors. 

The total number of shares received by directors of the Company during the financial year in accordance with the plan was 251,739
(2012: 112,007).  The total value of shares received by directors during the financial year in accordance with the plan was $423,601 
(2012: $379,464), as determined by the observed market price.

2013

2012
 LTI Program-CEO of WA

During the year the Board determined to discontinue the NED Share Plan. Consequently, NEDs will receive 100% of their fees in cash in the following 
financial year. In making its decision to discontinue the NED Share Plan the Board considered that, notwithstanding the perceived benefits of the NED 
Share Plan, the Plan was complex and inefficient to administer, in particular following changes to the tax legislation relating to equity plans, and that 
Directors could instead be encouraged to purchase and hold shares in the Company, subject to compliance with the Company’s Share Trading Policy. 
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31. CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate risk), credit risk, capital risk  and liquidity risk. 

The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the financial performance of the Group. 

The Group uses derivative financial instruments (interest rate swaps, caps and collars) to hedge certain interest rate risk exposures and forward 

foreign exchange contracts to hedge certain foreign exchange risk exposures.  Derivatives are exclusively used for hedging purposes, i.e. not as

trading or other speculative instruments.  The Group uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These methods

include sensitivity analysis in the case of interest rate and foreign exchange and aging analysis for credit risk.

Risk management is carried out by the finance department under policies approved by the board of directors.  The policies provide principles for

overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as interest rate risk.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the fair value or future cash flows 

of the Group's financial instruments.

(i) Price risk

The Group is not exposed to significant price risk.

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risks that the value of a financial instrument or its associated cash flows will fluctuate in response to changes in market

interest rates.

The Group's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings.  Borrowings sourced at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest

rate risk. The Group has mitigated this interest rate risk by entering into derivative transactions, including interest rate swaps. 

The amount of interest rate hedging in place from these swaps  at financial year end is equal to 29% (2012: 45%) of the Groups' variable rate borrowings.

The Group also  has additional hedging in the form of zero-cost collars. At 29 June 2013 the interest rate floors on these instruments were activated.

The total amount of interest rate hedging in place from the swaps and collars at financial year end is equal to 69% (2012: 76%).

The effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges amounts to a loss of $1,839,000 (2012: loss of $6,192,000).

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following variable and fixed rate financial instruments:

 

Weighted Weighted

average average

 interest  rate Balance  interest  rate Balance

% $’000 % $’000

Variable rate instruments:

Cash at bank, on hand and at call 3.57% (257,316)              4.07% (75,052)            

Bank loans 4.86% 1,508,482            6.24% 1,950,000        

Interest rate swaps  (notional principal amount) 3.94% (445,000)              3.77% (880,000)          

Interest rate collars (notional principal amount) 3.13% (600,000)              -                                 (600,000)          

Net exposure to cash flow interest rate risk 206,166                394,948           

There are no fixed rate instruments in place at 29 June 2013 or at 30 June 2012.

An analysis by maturities is provided under liquidity risk on the following pages.

29-Jun-2013 30-Jun-2012
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31. CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Group sensitivity

Based on the Group outstanding floating rate borrowings, interest rate swaps and collars at 29 June 2013, a change in interest rates at year end of +/- 1%

 per annum with all other variables remaining constant would impact equity and after tax profit by the amounts shown below.

This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

If interest rates were 1% higher with all other variables held constant:

(Decrease)/increase (6,683)            (2,473)               480                  7,121                      (6,203)                          4,648                

If interest rates were 1% lower with all other variables held constant:

Increase/(decrease) 8,230             8,851                3,426              (15,453)                   11,656                        (6,602)               

(iii) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or its associated cash flows will fluctuate due to changes in foreign

currency rates.

The Group has transactional currency risk. Such exposure arises from sales or purchases by an operating unit in currencies other than the unit's 

measurement currency. It is the Group's policy not to enter into forward contracts until a firm commitment is in place. The terms of the forward

currency contracts have been negotiated to match the terms of the commitments. The foreign currency contracts are being used to reduce the

exposure to the foreign exchange risk.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following exposure to foreign exchange risk:

2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Receivables:

Foreign exchange receivables and forward contracts 12,444                        12,382             

Payables:

Foreign exchange payables and forward contracts (11,466)                       (12,512)            

Net exposure 978                               (130)                  

Group sensitivity

Based on the Group's financial instruments held at 29 June 2013, had the Australian dollar weakened/strengthened by 10% against the US dollar,

Euro, UK pound and New Zealand dollar, with all other variables held constant, the Group's equity and  after tax profit for the year would not have changed

significantly (2012: no significant impact). The analysis was performed on the same basis as 2012 and ignores any impact of forecasted sales and purchases.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises

principally from credit exposures to customers, cash and cash equivalents and derivative financial instruments.

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. The Group limits its exposure in relation to cash balances and derivative financial instruments by only

dealing with well established financial institutions of high quality credit standing.  For other customers, risk control assesses the credit quality,

taking into account financial position, past experience and other factors.  The utilisation of credit limits are regularly monitored.

The Group's only significant concentration of credit risk is the receivable balance due from its main magazine distributor of $14,976,000

(2012: $21,297,000). The debtor has no history of bad debt and adheres to credit terms on a monthly basis.

For further information on credit risk refer to note 9.

Net Profit/(Loss) Reserves Equity
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31. CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group is unable to meet its financial commitments as and when they fall due.

The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity  to meet its liabilities when

 due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of  committed

credit facilities. The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flow and monitoring the Group's liquidity

reserve on the basis of these cash flow forecasts.

Financing arrangements

As disclosed in note 19, the Group has syndicated bank facilities which contains debt covenants. A breach in covenants may require the loan

 to be repaid earlier than indicated in the below table. 

At the end of the reporting period the Group held short dated deposits of $120,000,000 (2012: $50,000,000) that are readily available to generate

cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The table  analyses the Group's financial liabilities including interest to maturity into relevant groupings based on their contractual maturities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted principal and interest cash flows and therefore may not agree with the

carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.  For interest rate swaps the cash flows have been estimated using forward interest

rates applicable at the end of the reporting period.

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

At 29 June 2013

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 309,219           27,258                    336,477                        347,225           

Unsecured loans 73,283             1,652,591              1,725,874                    1,498,106       

Total non-derivatives 382,502           1,679,849              2,062,351                    1,845,331       

Derivative financial liabilities

Net settled interest rate swaps and collars 2,773                1,765                      4,538                             11,363             

Gross settled forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges:

- (inflow) (12,444)            -                                (12,444)                         (776)                  

- outflow 11,466             -                                11,466                          -                         

Total derivatives 1,795                1,765                      3,560                             10,587             

Total financial liabilities 384,297           1,681,614              2,065,911                    1,855,918       

Between
1 and 5  years

Total contractual 
cash flows

Carrying 
amount - 
liabilities

  
 

 
  

Less than 
one year
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31. CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

At 30 June 2012

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 305,637           32,849                    338,486                        367,457           
Unsecured loans 122,996           2,279,546              2,402,542                    1,929,799       

Total non-derivatives 428,633           2,312,395              2,741,028                    2,297,256       

Derivative financial liabilities

Net settled interest rate swaps and caps 1,931                1,585                      3,516                             11,250             
Gross settled forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges:
- (inflow) (12,382)            -                                (12,382)                         -                         
- outflow 12,512             -                                12,512                          131                   

Total derivatives 2,061                1,585                      3,646                             11,381             

Total financial liabilities 430,694           2,313,980              2,744,674                    2,308,637       

The cash flows associated with the cash flow hedge derivatives are expected to impact profit or loss in the same periods as those disclosed in

the above table.

Fair value measurement
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure purposes.

The carrying amounts of financial instruments disclosed in the statement of financial position approximate to their fair values.

AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures  requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement

hierarchy:

(a) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1)

(b) inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly 

(derived from prices) (level 2), and

(c) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The only assets or liabilities measured and recognised at fair value through profit and loss are the assets/liabilities recognised in relation to interest rate 

cash flow hedges and foreign exchange cash flow hedges  amounting to $10,587,000 (2012: $11,381,000).  The fair values of these derivatives (classified
 as level 2 in the fair value measurement  hierarchy)  are measured with reference to forward interest rates and exchange rates and the present value 

of the estimated future cash flows.

Capital Management
The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of

 the business.

Capital consists of ordinary shares , convertible preference shares and retained earnings  of the Group. The Board of directors monitors the return on

capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, 

issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group's net debt to adjusted equity ratio at the reporting date was as follows:

Total contractual 
cash flows

Carrying 
amount - 
liabilities

Less than 
one year

Between
1 and 5  years
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31. CAPITAL AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Total unsecured bank facility 1,508,482                  1,950,000       

Less: unamortised refinancing costs (10,376)                       (20,201)            

Less: cash and cash equivalents (257,316)                    (75,052)            

Net Debt 1,240,790                  1,854,747        

Total Equity 2,863,878                  2,619,393       
Add back; Amounts accumulated in equity relating to cash flow hedges 5,680                           4,392

Adjusted equity 2,869,558                  2,623,785        

Net debt to adjusted equity ratio 43% 71%

There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the year.

32. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT AFTER TAX TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Reconciliation of cash at the end of the year (as shown in the consolidated statement of cash flows)

comprises:

Cash at bank, on hand and at call 257,316                      75,052             

Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 257,316                                    75,052 

Reconciliation of operating profit after tax to net cash provided by operating activities

(Loss)/profit for the year (69,758)                                   226,889 

Non-cash items

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 57,989                                      61,561 

Amortisation of television program rights 132,350                                  139,950 

Impairment of intangible assets and equity accounted investees 288,727                                                - 

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and computer software (260)                                               (227)

Share based payment expense 1,135                           582                   

Dividend received from equity accounted investees less share of profit of equity accounted investees (10,981)                                      (2,751)

Movement in unamortised finance costs 9,825                                       (20,201)

Movement in:

Receivables 49,215                                    (14,700)

Inventories 5,478                                               519 

Program rights (134,859)                              (125,205)

Other operating assets 2,361                                          (4,024)

Payables (27,113)                                   (42,310)

Program liabilities 5,206                                            4,231 

Provisions 12,649                                         3,328 

Other operating liabilities 2,956                                          (1,519)

Tax balances 17,652                                    (10,158)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 342,572                                  215,965 
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33. PARENT ENTITY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Summary of financial information

The individual financial statements for the Parent Entity show the following aggregate amounts:

2013 2012

$'000 $'000

Financial position of parent entity at year end

Current assets 447                                98,324 

Total assets 3,193,841             3,502,875 

Current liabilities 25,589                                363 

Total liabilities 25,589                          65,700 

Total equity of the parent entity compromising of;
Share capital 3,090,405             2,656,017 

Reserves

Asset revaluation reserve 8,352                               8,352 

Equity compensation reserve 1,410                                  384 

Accumulated deficit (584,562)                                  - 

Profits reserve 652,647                     772,422 

3,168,252             3,437,175 

Result of parent entity

(Loss) profit for the year (584,562)                1,033,345 

Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year (584,562)                1,033,345 

 

Guarantees entered into by the parent entity
The Parent Entity has provided financial guarantees in respect of borrowings of a subsidiary amounting to $Nil (2012: $Nil).  

There are cross guarantees given by Seven West Media Limited and its subsidiaries described in note 28.

Contingent liabilities of the parent entity
The Parent Entity did not have any contingent liabilities as at 29 June 2013 or 30 June 2012. For information about guarantees given by the

Parent Entity refer above.

Contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant or equipment
The Parent Entity had no contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant or equipment as at 29 June 2013 or 30 June 2012.

34. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
In the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report there has not arisen any item, transaction or event of a 

material or unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, to affect significantly the operations of the Group, the 

results of these operations, or the state of affairs of the Group, currently or in future financial years.

Parent entity
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